
 

 

For all enquiries relating to this agenda please contact Emma Sullivan 
 (Tel: 01443 864420   Email: sullie@caerphilly.gov.uk) 

 
Date: 9th September 2014 

 
 
 
 
Dear Sir/Madam, 
 
A meeting of the Investigating and Disciplinary Committee will be held in the Core Room 1.3 - 
Penallta House, Tredomen, Ystrad Mynach on Monday, 15th September, 2014 at 5.00 pm to consider 
the matters contained in the following agenda. 
 

Yours faithfully, 

 
Chris Burns 

INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

  

1  To appoint a Chair.  
 

2  To receive apologies for absence.  
 

3  Declarations of interest-   
Councillors and Officers are reminded of their personal responsibility to declare any personal 
and/or prejudicial interest(s) in respect of any item of business on this agenda in accordance 
with the Local Government Act 2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Code of Conduct for 
both Councillors and Officers. 
 

To approve and sign the following minutes: -   
 
4  Investigating and Disciplinary Committee - 3rd April 2014 (minute nos. 1-4).  

 
5  Proposed changes to the procedures in the Terms Of Reference as a result of Local Authorities 

(Standing Orders) (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2014.  
 

Public Document Pack



To receive and consider the following items which in the opinion of the proper officer are exempt items 
taking into account consideration of the public interest test and that the press and public should be 
excluded from this part of the meeting. The public interest test is attached. 
 
The following items contain exempt information by virtue of Paragraph 12 of Schedule 12a of the Local 
Government Act, 1972 (As Amended). 
  
 
6  To receive an update on the referral(s) previously made under the Council's Disciplinary 

Procedure for Statutory Officers  
 

 
Circulation: 
Councillors W. David, N. George, S. Morgan, J.A. Pritchard, D. Rees, J. Taylor and R. Woodyatt 
 
For information substitutes Councillors R.W. Gough and Mrs J. Summers 
 
And Appropriate Officers 



Council 08.10.2014 

 
 

 

 

INVESTIGATING DISCIPLINARY COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD AT PENALLTA HOUSE, YSTRAD MYNACH 

ON 3RD APRIL 2014 AT 5:00PM 
 

 
PRESENT: 

 

Councillor H. David - Chairman 
 
 

Councillors: 
Mrs B. Jones, G. Kirby, Ms J. Pritchard, D. Rees, J. Taylor and R. Woodyatt. 

 
 

By Invitation: 
Substitute Member Councillor R. Gough 

 
 

Together with: 
 

S. Rosser (Interim Chief Executive), L. Donovan (HR Service Manager), A. Price (Barrister) 
and E. Sullivan (Democratic Services Officer) 

 
 
 APOLOGIES 
 

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Mrs J. Summers (Substitute Member). 
 
 
1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

There were no declarations of interest received at the start or during the course of the meeting 
 
 
2. MINUTES - 29TH OCTOBER 2013 
 

 RESOLVED that the minutes of the Investigation and Disciplinary Committee held on 29th 
October 2013 (minute nos. 1 - 5, on page nos. 1 - 2), be approved as correct record and 
signed by the Chair. 

 
 
3.  EXEMPT MATTER 
 

 Members considered the public interest test certificate from the Proper Officer and concluded 
that on balance the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighed the public interest 
in disclosing the information.  By a show of hands this was unanimously agreed and it was 

 

RESOLVED that in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972 the public may be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the 
likely disclosure to them of exempt information as identified in paragraph 12 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (As Amended). 

Agenda Item 4

Page 1



Council 08.10.2014 

4. TO REVIEW REFERRAL(S) PREVIOUSLY MADE UNDER THE COUNCIL’S 
DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURE FOR STATUTORY OFFICERS AND DETERMINE STEPS TO 
BE UNDERTAKEN 

 
 Members received a verbal update from the Interim Chief Executive on the present position of 

the referrals made under the Council’s Disciplinary Procedure for Statutory Officers. 
 
 The key events, issues and estimated timescales were outlined and the options available to 

the Committee detailed.  The Interim Chief Executive advised that external legal advice had 
been sought with regard to potential options going forward.  These would be collated and a 
report presented to the next appropriate meeting of this Committee. 

 
 The Chair thanked the Interim Chief Executive and having fully considered the information 

presented, Members noted the update. 
 
 Following the update from the Interim Chief Executive and for the reasons given at the 

meeting Councillor H. David and Councillor G. Kirby resigned their places on the Committee. 
 
 It was moved and seconded that the meeting be closed at this point in the proceedings so that 

arrangements could be made to recruit and train replacement Members.  It was also moved 
and seconded that a further meeting would not be scheduled until these arrangements had 
been made and the outcome of the Magistrates Court Hearing on the 22nd April 2014 was 
known and by a show of hands this was unanimously agreed. 

 
 
 The meeting closed at 17:35 p.m. 
 
 
 Approved as a correct record, and subject to any amendments or corrections agreed and 

recorded in the minutes of the next meeting, they were signed by the Chair. 
 
 

_______________________ 
CHAIRMAN 

Page 2



 
 

 

 

INVESTIGATING AND DISCIPLINARY COMMITTEE –  

15TH SEPTEMBER 2014 
 

SUBJECT: PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE PROCEDURES IN THE TERMS OF 

REFERENCE AS A RESULT OF LOCAL AUTHORITIES (STANDING 
ORDERS) (WALES) (AMENDMENT) REGULATIONS 2014 

 

REPORT BY: INTERIM HEAD OF LEGAL SERVICES AND MONITORING OFFICER 

 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To propose amendments to the disciplinary procedures set out in this Committees Terms of 

Reference as a result of certain changes made to the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) 
(Wales) Regulations 2006 by the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (Wales) (Amendment) 
Regulations 2014 in relation to the dismissing and conducting disciplinary investigations of 
certain officers of the Council. 

 
1.2 To seek approval for the Council’s Interim Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer to 

make the necessary changes to the disciplinary procedures to reflect the changes referred to 
in paragraph 4.4 and 4.5 of this report. 

 
1.3 To confirm that the changes to be made in accordance with paragraph 1.2 will be followed in 

relation to the current proceedings. 
 
T1.4 o note that a separate report will be presented to Council to propose additional and 

consequential amendments to the Constitution and the Committees Terms of Reference. 
 

a) to reflect the requirements of the 2014 Regulations and  
b) to reflect a review of current procedures.   

 
 
2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 To seek approval to amend the disciplinary procedures set out in the Committees Terms of 

Reference to reflect certain requirements of the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (Wales) 
(Amendment) Regulations 2014. 

 
 
3. LINKS TO STRATEGY 
 
3.1 As part of its Terms of Reference the Investigating and Disciplinary Committee has the power 

to review and amend the Disciplinary Procedures A & B from time to time having regard to 
any changes to the model procedures outlined in the JNC Conditions of Service for Chief 
Officers that may be implemented from time to time.  The JNC Conditions are based on the 
Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (Wales) Regulations 2006 and associated amendments.   

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 3



4. THE REPORT 
 

4.1 The Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2014 (the 2014 
Regulations) came into force on 1st July 2014 and amended the Local Authorities (Standing 
Orders) (Wales) Regulations 2006 (the 2006 Regulations) relating amongst other matters to 
the process for dismissing and conducting disciplinary investigations of certain officers of 
authorities.   

 

4.2 As part of its Terms of Reference this Committee has the power to review and amend the 
Disciplinary Procedures A and B from time to time having regard to any changes to the model 
procedures outlined in the JNC Conditions of Service for Chief Officers that may be 
implemented from time to time.  

 

4.3 This report advises the Committee of the specific changes introduced by the 2014 
Regulations which affect both Disciplinary Procedures A and B and proposes amendments to 
both procedures to give effect to those changes as set out in Appendix 1 and 2. 

 
 Disciplinary Procedure A 
 

4.4 The changes of particular relevance for consideration by this Committee in respect of   
Disciplinary Procedure A are as follows:- 

 
4.4.1 The role of the Head of Democratic Services is to be given the same protection as the Head 

of Paid Service, the Monitoring Officer and the Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 Officer) as 
regards the process under which local authorities can take disciplinary action against them, 
which requires that a Designated Independent Person is involved in the process.   

 

4.1.2 The protection in 4.4.1 above now extends to an officer who was at the time of the alleged 
misconduct in one of the positions above, even if they are no longer in that post, when the 
disciplinary procedures commenced.  

 

4.1.3 The posts of Head of Democratic Services and Monitoring Officer are added to the list of 
posts who are not subject to appointment, dismissal or the taking of disciplinary action by the 
Head of Paid Service or by an officer nominated by the Head of Paid Service.  The Monitoring 
Officer is already included in Disciplinary Procedure A, so this change has only required the 
inclusion of Head of Democratic Services to Disciplinary Procedure A as set out in 
Appendix 1.   

 

4.1.4 Minor consequential amendments have also been made to refer to the 2014 Regulations and 
reference to Welsh Ministers. 

 
 Disciplinary Procedure B 
 

4.5 The changes of particular relevance for consideration by this Committee in respect of 
Disciplinary Procedure B are as follows:- 

 

4.5.1 The amendment referred to in 4.4.1 has resulted in a change to paragraph 1 of Disciplinary 
Procedure B so as to exclude the Head of Democratic Services.   

 
4.5.2 In addition the 2014 Regulations extend the scope of Disciplinary Procedure B to include an 

officer who was at the time, of the alleged misconduct in one of the positions referred to in 
Disciplinary Procedure B even if, they are no longer in that post when the disciplinary 
procedures commenced.   

 

4.5.3 Minor consequential amendments have also been made to refer to the 2014 Regulations.  
 

4.6 Members will note this report seeks approval to make specific changes to the Disciplinary 
Procedures A and B as a result of the 2014 Regulations.  Further changes will be proposed in 
a report to Council to reflect the additional requirements of the 2014 Regulations including 
changes to the Officer Employment Procedure Rules and appropriate definitions. 

 

Page 4



4.7 In view of the above changes, this report seeks Committees approval for the Interim Head of 
Legal Services and Monitoring Officer to make the necessary changes to Disciplinary 
Procedures A and B as set out in Appendix 1 and 2 of this report. 

 
 
5. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 There are no equalities implications as a result of this report. 
 
 
6. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 There are no financial implications as a result of this report. 
 
 
7. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 The personnel implications as set out in this report. 
 
 
8. CONSULTATIONS 
 
8.1 The views of the consultees have been reflected in this report. 
 
 
9. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
9.1 To authorise the Council’s Interim Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer to make the 

changes to the Disciplinary Procedures A and B as set out in Appendix 1 and 2 to this report.   
 
9.2 To confirm that the changes to be made in accordance with paragraph 9.1 will be followed in 

relation to the current proceedings. 
 
9.3 To note that a separate report will be presented to Council to propose additional and 

consequential amendments to the Constitution and the Committees Terms of Reference  
 

a)  to reflect the requirements of the 2014 Regulations and  
b)  to reflect a review of current procedures. 

 
 
10. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
10.1 To give effect to the requirements of the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (Wales) 

(Amendment) Regulations 2014. 
 
10.2 The Council is legally required to make these changes. 
 
 
11. STATUTORY POWER  
 
11.1 Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2014. 
 Local Government Act 1972. 
 
 
Author: Lisa Lane, Solicitor 
Consultees: Lynne Donovan, HR Service Manager 
 

Page 5



Background Papers: 
Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (Wales) Regulations 2006 as amended by the Local Authorities 
(Standing Orders) (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2014 
Explanatory Memorandum to the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (Wales) Regulations 
(Amendment) Regulations 2014 
 
Appendices: 
Appendix 1 Disciplinary Procedure A 
Appendix 2 Disciplinary Procedure B 
 

Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Agenda Item 6

Page 35



Page 36


	Agenda
	4 Investigating and Disciplinary Committee - 3rd April 2014 (minute nos. 1-4).
	5 Proposed changes to the procedures in the Terms Of Reference as a result of Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2014.
	Proposed Changes to Procedures Appendix 1
	Proposed Changes to Procedures Appendix 2

	6 To receive an update on the referral(s) previously made under the Council's Disciplinary Procedure for Statutory Officers

